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Independent auditor's report on the 
consolidated financial statements of 
the prudential conglomerate 
 
 
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Banco BOCOM BBM S.A. 
 
 
 
 
Opinion 

 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of prudential conglomerate of 
Banco BOCOM BBM S.A. (the "Bank"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet of the prudential 
conglomerate as at December 31, 2021 and the consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flow for the year and six-month period then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. These 
special purpose financial statements were prepared in accordance with specified procedures as established 
in resolution no 4,280, from October 31, 2013, issued by National Monetary Council ("CMN"), and 
supplementary regulations of the Brazil Central Bank (BACEN), described in Note 2. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements of the prudential conglomerate referred to above present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of the prudential conglomerate of Banco BOCOM BBM S.A. as 
at December 31, 2021, and the Bank's financial performance and cash flow, as well as the consolidated 
financial performance and cash flow, for the year and six-month period then ended, in accordance with the 
provisions for the preparation of consolidated financial statements of the prudential conglomerate 
established by resolution no 4,280 of the CMN and supplementary regulations of BACEN, for the 
preparation of these special purpose consolidated financial statements, as described in the Note 2.  
 
Basis for opinion 

 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Brazilian and International Standards on Auditing. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit 
of the consolidated financial statements of the prudential conglomerate section of our report. We are 
independent of the Bank and its companies of the prudential conglomerate in accordance with the ethical 
requirements established in the Code of Professional Ethics and Professional Standards issued by the 
Brazilian Federal Accounting Council, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the prudential 
conglomerate 

 
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to the Note 2, which discloses that the consolidated 
financial statements of the prudential conglomerate were prepared by management to comply with the 
requirements of resolution no 4,280 of the CMN, and supplementary regulations of BACEN.  
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Consequently, our report on these consolidated financial statements was prepared exclusively for the 
compliance with these specific requirements and, accordingly, may not be suitable for another purpose. 
 
Other matters 

 
Financial statements of parent company 
and consolidated financial statements 
 
Banco BOCOM BBM S.A. prepared a set of parent company and consolidated financial statements for 
general purposes referring to the year and six-month period then ended on December 31, 2021, in 
accordance with accounting practices adopted in Brazil, applicable to institutions authorized to operate 
by the Brazilian Central Bank (BACEN), on which we issue an unmodified audit report, dated 
February 21, 2022.  
 
Other information accompanying the consolidated financial statements of the prudential 
conglomerate and the auditor's report 

 
The Bank's management is responsible for the other information that comprises the Management's 
Report. 
 
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the prudential conglomerate does not cover the 
Management's Report, and we do not express any form of audit conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the prudential conglomerate, our 
responsibility is to read the Management's Report and, in doing so, consider whether this report is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement in the Management's Report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard. 
  
Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated 
financial statements of the prudential conglomerate 

 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements of the prudential conglomerate of Banco BOCOM BBM S.A. in accordance with resolution 
no 4,280 of the National Monetary Council (CMN), and supplementary regulations of the Brazilian Central 
Bank (BACEN), whose main criteria and accounting policies are disclosed in the Notes 2 and 3, and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements of the prudential conglomerate that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the prudential conglomerate, management is 
responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those charged with governance in the Bank and companies of the prudential conglomerate are responsible 
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Bank and its companies. 
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 
prudential conglomerate 

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements of 
the prudential conglomerate, prepared in accordance with resolution no 4,280 of the National Monetary 
Council (CMN), and supplementary regulations of the Brazilian Central Bank (BACEN), as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Brazilian and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with Brazilian and International Standards on Auditing, whereas the 
NBC TA 800 (Special Conditions - Audit Financial Statements in accordance with special purpose 
accounting conceptual structures), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements of the 

prudential conglomerate, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the internal control of the Bank and companies of the prudential conglomerate. 

 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to 
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements of prudential conglomerate or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Bank to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements of the 

prudential conglomerate, including the disclosures, and whether these financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of 
the prudential conglomerate. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

Rio de Janeiro, February 21, 2022 

PricewaterhouseCoopers 
Auditores Independentes Ltda. 
CRC 2SP000160/O-5 

Caio Fernandes Arantes 
Contador CRC 1SP222767/O-3 
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Prudential Conglomerate 

Management’s Report 
(In thousands of Reais, unless otherwise indicated) 

Who We Are 

With agility and transparency, we meet the need for credit and financial services of companies established in Brazil. For the management 
and consultancy of individual assets (Wealth Management), we use methods that have been successfully tested and improved over decades 
and the expertise of a highly qualified and certified team. The credit funds area provides private credit funds, in addition to global funds.  

Through ethical and transparent procedures, we focus our efforts on sustainably offering to our shareholders and customers the profitability 
of capital, as well as the Brazil-China integration; to our employees, opportunities for professional, material and intellectual growth, 
encouraging the search for cutting-edge knowledge, especially in the financial and technological areas. 

Message from Management 

The global economy recovered strongly in 2021, as vaccine rollout enabled the main economies to relax social distancing rules and mobility 
restrictions. Most countries in the northern hemisphere ended the year with more than 75% of the population fully immunized. In response 
to the recovery, governments of several countries dialed back the fiscal and monetary stimulus programs introduced during the pandemic, 
especially in light of concerns about the sustainability of the spending involved, as well as inflation. In Brazil, 67% of the population had 
been immunized (two doses) by the end of the year, and economic growth was driven mainly by the global recovery and rising commodity 
prices. Record tax collection, the end of extraordinary expenditure due to the pandemic and nominal GDP growth brought relief to the 
fiscal outlook and the debt-to-GDP ratio. In 2021, growth benefited from the resumption of activity, which had been hard hit by the 
pandemic in the previous year, but the prospects for 2022 are less favorable. The labor market and service sector continue to recover, but 
a restrictive monetary policy and the high level of household debt represent challenges to growth. Brazil’s presidential election and adverse 
international financial conditions, including monetary tightening in the United States, add even more uncertainty to the outlook. The tax 
and administrative reform agenda remains decisive for the Brazilian economy to grow robustly and achieve fiscal sustainability in the years 
ahead.  

In 2021, we continued with the requisite procedures in our offices to protect our staff and consequently their families and friends from 
contamination by COVID 19. Thanks to these procedures, in conjunction with the precautions taken by us all personally and the results of 
the public vaccination policy, we had only one case involving hospitalization among our entire staff. In September, we began the transition 
to a new normal by incentivizing a return to work at the office at the same time as our managers and senior executives created methods 
that permit remote working on some weekdays. In this manner, we sought to balance the need to spend less time commuting with more 
time to socialize with coworkers, improving the work experience and productivity in both cases. This transition was interrupted in December 
by the advent of the omicron variant, and resumed in February 2022. 

Precautions and care to protect the health and wellbeing of the people with whom we interact in this second year of exceptionality join our 

sustainability procedures as we strive to have a positive socio-environmental impact, mitigate environmental and social risks, and comply 
with laws and regulations, both external and internal, always ensuring that governance is transparent and aligned with the interests of all 
our stakeholders. 

The continuing pandemic and its economic impact on society in 2021 reinforced the importance of the bank’s corporate support for actions 
targeting the local community and research on COVID-19. We donated baskets of staples to poor families living in the vicinity of our Rio 
de Janeiro office. We supported COVID-19 Analytics, a tool developed by researchers at the Pontifical Catholic University of Rio de Janeiro 
(PUC-Rio) to monitor the evolution of the pandemic. Alongside actions directly relating to the pandemic, we advanced our internal and 
external ESG initiatives. Internally, we formalized our ESG Committee and Women’s Committee. The latter’s remit is to increase recruitment 
of women and promote their careers. Our external initiatives include a continuing commitment to support education and training in 
economics and technology by awarding scholarships for study at PUC-Rio, Getúlio Vargas Foundation (FGV) and the Aeronautics Institute 
of Technology (ITA), and by sponsoring the 42 Rio coding school. Inspired by our belief in the importance of supporting socio-environmental 
projects that are capable of having a positive impact on society, we began the process of sponsorship via federal tax incentives such as 
the Rouanet Law and the Sports Incentive Law. In 2021, we allocated approximately BRL 900,000 to four projects. Since 2019, at the end 
of each year we have participated in the project Natal de Emoções (Christmas Feelings) by donating food baskets and personal hygiene 
products to philanthropic institutions. We remain committed to these actions in 2022, and will continue to sponsor projects with high social 
and environmental returns, contributing to the sustainable development of the economy and society. 

Brazil’s economic recovery in 2021, combined with the efforts of our staff and our focus on identifying the needs of our clients, enabled us 
to maintain the growth of our activities and of our profitability. The product diversification we systematically seek to offer clients in order 
to develop our relationships changed the composition of our income, with the capital markets and financial protection via derivatives-based 
hedging accounting for a growing share. Wealth management and financial services reached 24.6% of total income. 
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Management’s Report 
(In thousands of Reais, unless otherwise indicated)  

Message from Management (Continued) 

We are an Asian bank, and the countries of Asia that responded promptly to the public health crisis as it began are now reaping the fruits 
of this strategy. In China, the policy of case control and monitoring was successful, and the economy grew 8.1% in 2021. In contrast with 
the other developed countries, China’s fiscal discipline during the pandemic allows it to opt for more expansionary fiscal and monetary 
policies in response to the prospect of slower growth in 2022. The deterioration of the real estate market and decelerating consumption 
are guiding the government’s planning and actions toward stable growth, with a focus on economic development, a reduction in inequality, 
and the use of technology to achieve sustainable growth. This vision leads us to seek opportunities and means to integrate the Brazilian 
market with those of Asia, especially China. This is why we were the first Latin American bank to join Bond Connect, the main platform for 
the purchase of bonds on China’s local market. 
  
The global economic recovery that took place in 2021 was accompanied by changes in consumer habits, supply chains, and the labor 
market, especially the types of available professionals and jobs. These factors, previously witnessed only at times of large-scale war, 
alongside widespread demand pressures due to low or negative real interest rates, present challenges to states, governments, business 
organizations and individuals. We must take this into account in our work in 2022. 
  

Performance of Prudential Conglomerate 
 
The Prudential Conglomerate recorded equity of R$ 841 million and net income of R$ 147 million on December 31, 2021, which corresponds 
to annual profitability of 18.37%, calculated based on the average equity for the period. 

Total assets on December 31, 2021 amounted to R$ 14,184 million. The amount raised in the domestic and foreign markets totaled R$ 
11,008 million at end of the year. The Bank’s Basel Capital Adequacy Ratio was 12.64% at the end of the year. 

Corporate Credit 
 
The expanded credit portfolio reached R$ 10.33 billion, including export-import finance and guarantees such as sureties and avals, and we 
actively participated in the extension of credit facilities as part of the measures implemented to mitigate the economic impact of the 
pandemic via PEAC and BNDES, for a total of R$ 2.5 billion.  
 

Wealth Management 
 

Using constantly updated tools to manage the assets of Brazilian and foreign clients, we offer a range of financial products via an open 

platform and global investment opportunities suited to long-term objectives. Assets under management totaled R$ 9.3 billion in December 
2021. 
 

Asset Management  
 
Asset Management offers investment funds with a medium and long term horizon. In addition to private credit funds, global equity funds 
ESG, US and China, focus on sustainability, return on US companies and return on Chinese companies, respectively. Our main differentials 
are the robust management processes, using macro research, credit analysis and monitoring. In December 2021, assets invested in the 
funds totaled R$ 1.1 billion. 

People 

We are recognized for identifying and developing talents, valuing the search for cutting-edge knowledge and encouraging people who want 
to achieve their material and intellectual goals with the support of practical and academic experience. We know the importance of teaching 
and motivating those who join us, in order to discover new ways to do our job better. We are committed to maintaining a meritocratic, 
dynamic, transparent and diverse work environment, taking into account the dignity and well-being of the social groups with which we 
interact. 
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Management’s Report 
(In thousands of Reais, unless otherwise indicated)  

Credit Rating 
 
In our point of view, the classification of the rating agencies are an important source of transparent and independent assessment of the 
quality of our credit. 

Moody's Investors Service assigned the ratings of Banco BOCOM BBM on June 30, 2021. On a global scale, "Ba1" rating was assigned to 
local and foreign currency deposits, with a notch above the Brazilian rating (“Ba2”) and “Ba1” for deposits in foreign currency, and “stable 
perspective”. In the national scale, the “Aaa.br” rating was assigned by the Moody’s Local Brazil, in July 12, 2021, with “stable perspective”, 
the best possible credit rating in this category. 

In addition, on August 24, 2021, Fitch Ratings assigned the long-term national rating "AAA (bra)", the highest possible rating in this 
category. On a global scale, long-term issuer default ratings (IDR) "BB" and "BB+" were assigned in foreign currency and local currency, 
respectively, keeping above the sovereign rating ("BB-"). BOCOM BBM's long-term IDR prospects reflect those of sovereign ratings. 

Securities Portfolio 

 
The Sales & Trading area is responsible for managing and negotiating corporate securities. The scope of this business unit includes the 
active negotiation of corporate securities in the secondary market, thus, together with the reorganization. 
 
 

Bank Segmentation Transition 
  
In June 2020, Banco BOCOM BBM S.A. completed 3 six-month periods with the Total Exposure/GPD ratio higher than 0.1%, thus being 
subject to the regulation of the S3 segment at the end of 2020, according to Article 8 of Resolution No. 4,553 of 2017. 
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Balance Sheet 
(In thousands of Reais) 

 

 

Assets 12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Current and long-term assets 14,139,490 12,177,923 

Cash 4 972,605 666,826 

Bank deposits 3 2 

Cash 4 3 

Free reserves 2,110 11,470 

Bank deposits in foreign currencies 970,488 655,351 

Short-term interbank investments 5 411,082 768,723 

Open market investments 4 14,333 540,007 

Interbank deposits 257,236 226,637 

Investments in foreign currencies 4 139,513 2,079 

Marketable securities and derivative financial instruments 6 4,742,472 3,706,814 

Bank portfolio 1,765,968 2,364,784 

Subject to repurchase agreements 1,786,946 283,794 

Linked to guarantees given 1,009,511 971,640 

Derivative financial instruments 21 180,228 86,716 

Allowance for marketable securities (181) (120) 

Interbank accounts 7,110 63,684 

Correspondent banks 274 85 

Deposits – Central Bank of Brazil 6,836 63,599 

Loan transactions 7 7,210,205 6,471,638 

Discounted securities and loans 5,397,606 5,137,907 

Financing 1,285,963 734,566 

Rural and agroindustrial financing 575,327 636,906 

Allowance for loans (48,691) (37,741) 

Other receivables 785,002 484,304 

Foreign exchange portfolio 8 520,573 223,478 

Unearned income 18,934 19,157 

Trading and brokerage - 2 

Credit assignment 7 20,887 25,937 

Sundry 13 111,539 109,666 

Tax credits 24 117,715 107,332 

Allowance for other receivables 7 (4,646) (1,268) 

Other assets 14 11,014 15,934 

Permanent assets 44,652 36,590 

Investments 1,081 647 

Other investments 3,710 3,275 

Provision for losses (2,629) (2,628) 

Property and equipment in use 11,149 11,007 

Furniture and equipment 13,912 11,876 

(-) Furniture and equipment depreciation (5,891) (4,441) 

Improvements in third party real estate 6,936 6,936 

(-) Depreciation in improvement in third parties properties (3,809) (3,365) 

Lands 1 1 

Intangible 15 32,422 24,936 

Total assets 14,184,142 12,214,513

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Prudential Conglomerate
Note
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Balance Sheet 
(In thousands of Reais) 
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Statement of Operations 
(In thousands of Reais, except the net income per share) 

 
 

 

Second half of 

2021
12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Financial income 748,665 861,843 719,820 

Loan transactions 332,611 512,042 324,109 

Income from marketable securities transactions 5 and 6 172,006 207,884 231,053 

Gain on derivative financial instruments 21 244,048 141,917 164,658 

Financial expenses (534,390) (448,791) (400,238) 

Market funding operations 17 (216,282) (293,196) (194,448) 

Loans, assignments and onlending operations 17 (273,673) (137,781) (345,001) 

Result of exchange operations 17 (36,779) (2,964) 166,982 

(Provisions)/Reversals of allowance doubtful accounts 7 (7,818) (14,891) (26,925) 

(Provisions)/Reversals for marketable securities 6 162 41 (846) 

Gross financial income 214,275 413,052 319,582 

Other operating income (expenses) (32,202) (71,117) (66,179) 

Service revenues 18 81,677 139,405 105,455 

Personnel expenses (59,912) (111,568) (90,028) 

Other administrative expenses 19 (38,378) (70,953) (61,143) 

Tax expenses (15,538) (27,935) (23,582) 

Other operating income 721 1,657 7,386 

Other operating expenses (772) (1,723) (4,267) 

Operating income 182,073 341,935 253,403 

Non-operating expenses 32 1,133 (7,393) 

Income before income taxes 

and profit sharing 182,106 343,068 246,010 

Income and social contributions taxes 24 (57,187) (117,670) (79,614) 

Provision for income tax (36,185) (64,703) (62,859) 

Provision for social contribution tax (32,411) (52,598) (43,122) 

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) 11,409 (369) 26,367 

Profit sharing – management and employees (41,059) (77,999) (49,824) 

Net income 83,860 147,399 116,572 

Earnings per outstanding share 0.41 0.72 0.57

Note

Prudential Conglomerate
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Statement of Comprehensive Income  
(In thousands of Reais) 
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Statement of changes in equity of Banco BOCOM BBM S.A. 
(In thousands of Reais, except for the values per share) 
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Statement of Cash Flow 
(In thousands of Reais) 
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Notes to the financial statements as at December 31, 2021  
(In thousands of Reais, unless otherwise indicated) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
1. Operations 
 

Banco BOCOM BBM is the leading institution of the Prudential Conglomerate (Note 2) and is authorized to operate as finance 
bank with the following portfolios: 

• Commercial; 

• Investment; 

• Loan, Financing and Investment; 

• Foreign Exchange; 

• Energy trading. 
 
Prudential Conglomerate operates as a group of institutions which operate together in the financial market, with certain 
operations involving co-participation or intermediation of associated institutions which are part of Banco BOCOM BBM Financial 
Group. The benefits of services rendered by such institutions and the costs of the Financial Group’s shared operating and 
administrative structures are fully or individually absorbed, which is practical and reasonable in the circumstances.  
 

2. Presentation of the Financial Statements and Consolidation Criteria 
 
The financial statements of the Prudential Conglomerate were prepared in accordance with the Resolution No. 4,280/2013, of 

the Brazilian National Monetary Council (CMN), and Circular Letter No. 3,701/2015 of the Central Bank of Brazil (BACEN), which 
are elaborated based on the accounting guidelines arising from the Laws No. 4,595/64 (National Financial System Law) and No. 
6,404/76 (Corporation Law), including the amendments introduced by the Laws No.11,638/07 and No. 11,941/09, in compliance 
with the standards and instructions from CMN, BACEN, Federal Accounting Council (CFC) and the accounting practices adopted 
in Brazil applicable to financial institutions regulated by the BACEN. 

 
The preparation of these statements in accordance with the accounting practices adopted in Brazil, applicable to financial 
institutions, requires management to use judgment in the determination and recording of accounting estimates, when 
applicable. Significant assets and liabilities subject to these estimates and assumptions include: allowance for doubtful accounts, 
realization of deferred tax assets, provision for labor, tax and civil claims, valuation of financial instruments and other provisions. 
The definitive values of the transactions involving these estimates will only be known at the time of their settlement. 
 
As of May 2020, the amendments to CMN Resolution No. 4,818/20 and BACEN Resolution No. 2/20 were included in Banco 
Bocom BBM's consolidated financial statements. The main objective of these standards is to comply with the guidelines for the 
presentation of financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards, International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS). The main changes implemented were: the Balance Sheets for the period are presented in comparison with 
the end of the immediately preceding year and the other statements are compared with the same periods of the previous year 
for which they were presented; and the inclusion of the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The changes implemented by the 
new standards had no impact in the Net Income or Shareholders' Equity. 

 

2.1  Consolidation  
 
The Prudential Conglomerate’s financial statements were prepared in accordance with the consolidation criteria stated by 
BACEN’s Resolution No. 4,280/2013, which includes financial institutions and other institutions authorized to operate by the 
Central Bank of Brazil. 
  
In the consolidation process of the entities participating in the Prudential Conglomerate, at the base date, there was an 
adjustment in order that the same classifications, criteria, procedures and accounting practices used in the lead institution are 
applied in the evaluation and recognition of the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, with the following eliminations: 

 

• Capital share, reserves and accumulated results held between the institutions (it also should be noted that there is no 
intercompany transactions); 

• Balances of current accounts and other Assets and/or Liabilities between the institutions, whose balance sheets were 
consolidated; and 

• The effects on profit or loss arising from significant transactions between these institutions. 
 
 

The Prudential Conglomerate financial statements comprise the financial statements at December 31, 2021 and December 
31, 2020 of the following institutions: 
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Notes to the financial statements as at December 31, 2021  
(In thousands of Reais, unless otherwise indicated) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
2.1  Consolidation (continued) 

 Banco BOCOM BBM S.A. and Nassau branch 

 BBM Bank Ltd. (a) 

 BOCOM BBM Corretora de Câmbio e Valores Mobiliários S.A. (b) 

 Bahia Fund (c) 

 The Southern Atlantic Investments (b) 

     Jiang Fundo de Investimento Multimercado Credito Privado Investimento no Exterior (b) 

     Haitan Fund (a) 

     Tai Yang Fund (a) 
 

(a) The indirect participation of 100% of Banco BOCOM BBM in the social capital of BBM Bank Ltd., Bahia Fund, Haitan Fund 
and Tai Yang Fund were eliminated from the Prudential Conglomerate. 

 
(b) Banco BOCOM BBM directly holds 100% of the capital of these entities. The consolidation of Jiang FIM CPIE has started 

at March 2018. 

 
(c) Bahia Fund was dissolved on May 27, 2021 in the Cayman Islands. All of its shares were redeemed by The Southern 

Atlantic Investments, Ltd. 

 
3. Significant Accounting Practices 

 

(a) Results of operations 
 
Recorded on an accrual basis.  
According to BACEN Resolution No. 2/20, recurring and non-recurring results were presented separately. 

 

Second Half of 

2021
12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Recurring Net Income 83,825              146,933         120,929         

Non-recurring Events 35                     466                (4,357)            

Fines (68)                    (185)                (178)                

(Provisions)/Reversals for contingencies 139                    (144)                (3,603)             

Provision for devaluation of properties not for use (BNDU) -                    -                  (2,600)             

Result from sale of properties not for use (BNDU) -                    1,261               (1,540)             

Income tax and social contribution (36)                    (466)                3,564               

Net Income 83,860              147,399         116,572         

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 
 

(b) Marketable securities and derivative financial instruments 
 
In accordance with BACEN Circular Letter No. 3,068, securities are classified into the following categories: 
 

I- Trading securities; 

II- Securities available for sale; 

III- Securities held up to maturity. 
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Notes to the financial statements as at December 31, 2021  
(In thousands of Reais, unless otherwise indicated) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

3. Significant Accounting Practices (Continued) 
 

Securities classified in categories I and II are adjusted to market value, being the adjustment of the former directly accounted 
in the result and the adjustment of the latter in specific equity account, net of tax effects. Securities classified as “held up to 
maturity” are evaluated based on the cost plus the earnings. 
 
Derivative financial instruments are adjusted to market value, in accordance with BACEN Circular Letter No. 3,082. 
 
Investment fund quotas are restated monthly based on the quota value disclosed by the Administrators of the funds in which 
funds are invested. The appreciation and depreciation of investment fund quotas are presented in “Result from transactions 
with marketable securities". 
 

(c) Current and non-current assets 

 
These are presented at their realizable value, including, when applicable, the earnings and monetary variations (on a pro rata 
basis) and foreign exchange variations, less corresponding proceeds from future realization and/or provision for losses.  Balances 
maturing within 12 months (or 360 days) are classified as current assets.   
 

 
(d) Permanent assets 

 
These are stated at cost, plus the following aspects: 

 

* Evaluation of the significant investments in subsidiaries on an equity accounting basis.  

* Depreciation of property and equipment in use and lease calculated on a straight-line basis, based on annual rates that 
reflect the economic useful life of the assets, is as following: properties in use - 4%; furniture and utensils - 10% and data 
processing - 20%. 

* Amortization of intangible assets calculated according to the economic useful life of the asset.  
 

In accordance with CMN Resolution No. 4,534/16, financial institutions and institutions authorized to operate by BACEN cannot 
record Deferred Assets.  Balances recorded as deferred assets at the date this resolution became effective, except for lease 
losses to amortize, must be:  
 I- Reclassified to the proper asset accounts, according to the operation nature, when they refer to items that constitute 
an asset, according to the effective regulation; and 
 II- Amortized on a straight-line basis up to December 31, 2021, in the other cases. 

 
(e) Current liabilities and long-term liabilities 

 
These are stated at their known or calculable values including, whenever applicable, the charges and the monetary (on a daily 
pro rata basis) and exchange variations, less the corresponding expenses to be allocated. Balances maturing within 12 months 
(or 360 days) are classified as Current Liabilities. 

 

(f) Income tax and social contribution 
 
The provision for income tax is set up based on the taxable profit, at a 15% rate, plus 10% surcharge on annual taxable profit 
exceeding R$ 240 thousand.  The provision for social contribution tax is set up at the rate of 20%. 
 
The deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences were recognized in accordance with CMN Resolutions 
No. 3,059 of December 20, 2002, and No. 3.355, of March 31, 2006, and they take into account the history of profitability and 
the expected generation of future taxable income supported by technical feasibility studies.  The deferred taxes were constituted 
based on the expected income tax of 25% and social contribution rates of 15% and 20%, since used while the rate is effective.  

 
The president Jair Bolsonaro approved the Law No. 14,183, of 2021, arising from the Provisional Measure (MP) No. 1,034/2021, 
effective as from July /2021, amending the Law No. 7,689/1988, in order to increase the Social Contribution on Net Income 
(CSLL) rate due by financial institutions. The impact for Banco BOCOM BBM was the increase of the CSLL rate from 20% to 
25%, between 7/1/2021 and 12/31/2021, as from 1/1/2022, the rate will be of 20%, according to the amendment proposed 
by the MP No. 1,034/2021, article 3, item III of the Law No. 7,689/1988. BOCOM BBM CCVM had the CSLL rate increased from 
15% to 20%, between 7/1/2021 and 12/31/2021, and as from 1/1/2022, the rate will be of 15%, according to amendments 
proposed by MP No. 1,034/2021, article 3, item I, of the Law No. 7,689/1988.   
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Notes to the financial statements as at December 31, 2021  
(In thousands of Reais, unless otherwise indicated) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
3. Significant Accounting Practices (Continued) 
 

(g) Swaps, futures, forwards and options 
 
The nominal amounts of contracts are recorded in offsetting accounts. Daily adjustments of transactions conducted in the future 
market are recorded as effective income or expense as they are incurred.  Premiums paid or received upon the realization of 
operations in the options market are recorded in the respective equity accounts at cost, adjusted to market value as a 
counterparty to the result.  The market value of swap and term operations are individually recorded in asset and liability equity 
accounts, as a counterparty to the respective income and expense accounts.  
 

(h) Earnings per share 
 

These are calculated based on the average number of outstanding shares at the period. 
 

(i) Impairment of assets 
 
In accordance with CPC 1, as approved by CMN Resolution No.  3,566/08 of May 29, 2008, and based on management analysis, 
if the carrying amount of the assets of the Bank and of others institutions of the Prudential Conglomerate exceeds their 
recoverable value, an impairment is recognized in the statement of operations. 
 

(j) Contingent assets and liabilities and legal obligations 
 
The recognition, measurement and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and legal obligations are as follows: 
 
Contingent assets - these are not recognized in the financial statements, except when there are evidences that offer guarantees 
of their realization, with no appeals. 

 
Contingent liabilities - these are recognized in the financial statements when, based on the opinion of the legal advisors and of 
management, the loss of a lawsuit or administrative proceeding is evaluated as probable and whenever the amounts involved 
can be measured with sufficient reliability. The contingent liabilities classified as possible losses by legal advisors are not 
recorded and are just disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, and those classified as remote loss do not require any  
provision disclosure. Regarding the labor suits with loss probability classified as possible by the external lawyers, management 
will consider some assumptions such as: procedure stage, involved right, losses background, deal possibility.  Accordingly, even 
if the suits are classified as possible, they may be provided for.  

 
Legal obligations - tax and social security - these refer to lawsuits contesting the legality and constitutionality of some taxes 
and contributions. The discussed amount is quantified and accounted for. 

 
 

(k) Short-term interbank investments 
 
Interbank investments are stated at the acquisition, investment or release cost, plus foreign exchange, monetary and interest 
variations, as contractually defined.  When the market value is lower, a provision for the adjustment of an asset to its realization 
value is made. 
 

(l) Loan transactions 
 
Credit operations are stated at the acquisition, investment or release cost, plus foreign exchange, monetary and interest 
variations, as contractually defined. When the market value is lower, a provision for the adjustment of an asset to its realization 
value is carried out. An allowance for doubtful accounts is set at an amount considered sufficient to cover any losses, and it 
considers, in addition to past experience, the assessment of debtors and their guarantors, as well as the specific characteristics 
of the transactions, in accordance with the requirements of Brazilian Central Bank Resolution No. 2,682.  These are recorded at 
present value on a daily pro rata basis, based on the index variation and the agreed-upon interest rate, restated up to the 59th 
day in arrears at the financial companies, observing the estimated receipt date. After the 60th day, the recognition in the result 
occurs on the effective receipt of the installments. The renegotiated operations are maintained, at least, at the same level in 
which they were classified previously to the renegotiation and, if they have already been written-off against the provision, they 
are classified as level H; the gains are recognized as income upon the effective receipt. 
 
Credit assignments without risk retention result in the write-off of the financial assets that are the object of the operation, which 
are then kept in an offsetting account. The result of the assignment is fully recognized when it is realized. In January 2012, as 
determined by CMN Resolutions No. 3,533/2008 and No. 3,895/2010, all credit assignments with risk retention are recognized 
in the remaining terms of operations, and the financial assets subject to assignment are recorded as credit operations and the 
amount received as obligations for sales or transfer of financial assets.  
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Notes to the financial statements as at December 31, 2021  
(In thousands of Reais, unless otherwise indicated) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

3. Significant Accounting Practices (Continued) 
 

(m)  Cash and cash equivalents  
 

These represent cash and cash equivalents, unlinked balances with the Central Bank of Brazil and financial assets of high 
liquidity with maturities within three months, subject to an immaterial risk of changes in their fair values, which are used by 
the Group to manage short-term commitments (see Note 4). 

 
(n) Other values and assets 

 
The operations classified as Other values and assets represent operations arising from the execution of loan guarantees, which 
are initially valued at the remaining balance of the debt, and which are valued at fair value based on valuation reports prepared 
by professional entities with recognized qualifications, using evaluation techniques, limited to the value of the debt. 

 
(o) Hedge accounting 
 

The Bank allocated derivative financial assets to hedge principal amounts raised and the corresponding interest due. 
 
Derivative financial instruments used to mitigate risks arising from exposure to variations in the market values of financial 
assets and liabilities, and that are highly correlated regarding changes in its market value in relation to the market value of the  
item that is being protected, at the beginning and during the life of the contract and considered effective in reducing the risk 
associated to the exposure to be protected, are considered protection instruments (hedges) and classified based on their nature: 
 

(a) Market risk hedge: the financial instruments classified under this category, as well as their related financial assets and 
liabilities, which are the hedge objects, are recorded at fair value and have their gains/losses, whether realized or not, 
reflected in the result; and 

 

(b) Cash flow hedge: the financial instruments classified in this category are marked at fair value, being the effective 
installment of appreciation or depreciation recorded, net of tax effects, in a specific account on equity.  The ineffective 
portion of the respective hedge is recognized directly in the result. 

 
If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, cancelled or exercised, or when the hedging position does not fall under hedge 
accounting conditions, the hedging relationship ends. 
 

The objectives of the risk management of this operation, as well as the strategy of protection against such risks during the 
operation, are duly documented, as well as it is documented the evaluation, both at the beginning of the protection operation 
and on an ongoing basis. The derivative financial instruments are highly effective in offsetting the variations of the fair value 
(mark-to-market) of the hedged item. A hedge is expected to be highly effective if the variation in the fair value or cash flow 
attributable to the risk being hedged during the hedge relation period nulls from 80% to 125% of the risk variation. 
 
Derivative instruments used for hedging purposes, as well as the mark-to-market value of the hedged object are disclosed in 
Note 21.  

 
(p) Deposits and funding in the open market 

 
These are recognized at the amounts of the liabilities, and the charges payable, when applicable, are recorded on a daily pro 
rata basis. 

 
(q) Intangible assets 

 
These correspond to the acquired rights that aim at assets incorporated into the maintenance of the entity or exercised with 

this condition, in accordance with CMN Resolution No. 4,534, of November 24, 2016. It consists of (i) licenses and copyrights 
and use, and (ii) Software. Intangible assets with defined useful lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of 
their useful lives in which the rights generate benefits.  
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Notes to the financial statements as at December 31, 2021  
(In thousands of Reais, unless otherwise indicated) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Bank deposits in foreign currencies 970,488         655,351         

Investments in foreign currencies 139,513         2,079             

Open market investments (a) 10,199           540,007         

Free reserves 2,110             11,470           

Cash 4                   3                   

Bank deposits 3                   2                   

Total 1,122,317    1,208,912    

Prudential Conglomarate

 
 

 
(a) Committed transactions maturing within 90 days, on the date of application. 

 
 

5. Short-term Interbank Investments 

 
Short-term interbank investments are as follows: 
 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Open market investments 14,333         540,007       

Self-funded position 14,333         540,007       

Financial treasury bills 14,333           60,004           

National treasury bills -                380,001         

National treasury notes – B series -                100,002         

Interbank deposits (*) 257,236       226,637       

Investments in foreign currencies 139,513       2,079           

411,082       768,723       

Current assets 345,282         600,326         

Long-term receivables 65,800         168,397       

Total 411,082       768,723       

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 

(*) The interbank deposits in the Prudential Conglomerate on December 31, 2021 basically refer to Time Deposits with Special 

Guarantees. In the year ended December 31, 2021, their maturities are between January 2022 and June 2023. 

At December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the collateral received through repurchase agreements amounted to R$ 14,752  
thousand and R$ 542,414 thousand, respectively, in the Prudential Conglomerate. The provided collateral amounted to R$ 
3,425,812 thousand and R$ 9,459 thousand during the same periods. 

The results of short-term interbank investments in the Prudential Conglomerate are as follows: 

 

Second half of 

2021
12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Open market investments 12,974                   19,700               26,661               

Interbank deposits 11,571                   16,922               4,846                 

Investments in foreign currencies 279                       425                    1,902                 

Income from marketable securities transactions 24,824 37,047 33,409

Prudential Conglomerate
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Notes to the financial statements as at December 31, 2021  
(In thousands of Reais, unless otherwise indicated) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
6. Marketable Securities and Derivative Financial Instruments 
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Notes to the financial statements as at December 31, 2021  
(In thousands of Reais, unless otherwise indicated) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

6. Marketable Securities and Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)  
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Notes to the financial statements as at December 31, 2021  
(In thousands of Reais, unless otherwise indicated) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

6. Marketable Securities and Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)  

  

(a) The amount refers to Eurobonds, of which R$ 257,649 thousand are classified as "Securities held to Maturity" with final 
maturity up to September 2031, and R$ 733,402 thousand as "Securities Avaiable for Sale" with final maturity up to September 
2031.   

(*) Securities classified as "Securities for trading" maturing in more than 12 months and which, on December 31, 2021, amount 
to R$ 1,094,075 in the Prudential Conglomerate (December 31, 2020 - R$ 0 thousand), are stated as current assets, according 
to BACEN Circular Letter No. 3,068/01. Securities classified as “Available for sale”, maturing in more than 12 months, in the 
amount of R$ 1,738,655 thousand on December 31, 2021 (December 31, 2020 - R$ 1,354,338 thousand), in the Prudential 
Conglomerate, are stated as long-term receivables, according to BACEN Circular Letter No. 3,068/01, regardless its liquidity 
level.  The effect of this classification in net current capital is shown in Note 22 - Liquidity risk. 

There were no transfers in the bond category during 2021. 

Cost Market Cost Market

III-Derivative financial instruments

Swap Operations 183,142 169,669 211,417 258,402

Term 122,618 137,864 99,184 87,816

Futures 6,464 6,463 24,193 24,193

Options 3,748 3,686 473 379

Liability Position 315,972 317,682 335,267 370,790 

Segregation by maturity range:

Up to 3 motnths 84,856 88,537 14,157 16,467

From 3 to 12 months 86,162 100,006 56,319 56,601

Over 12 months 144,954 129,139 264,791 297,722

Total 315,972 317,682 335,267 370,790 

Prudential Conglomerate

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

 

The results of Marketable Securities in the Prudential Conglomerate are as follows: 

 

Private securities 38,088           85,706     146,966    

Government bonds 80,077           115,282    103,884    

Investment funds quotas 937               1,270       552          

Exchange Variation 28,080           (31,421)    (53,758)    

Income from marketable securities 147,182       170,837 197,644

(Provision)/Reversal of provision for Marketable Securities 162               41 (846)0 0 0

Result of (provision)/reversal of provision for Marketable Securities 162 41 (846)

Prudential Conglomerate

Second Half of 

2021
12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Prudential Conglomerate

Second Half of 

2021
12/31/2021 12/31/2020

 

 

The market values of marketable securities and derivative financial instruments are determined based on market price 
quotations at the balance sheet date, when available, or through price valuation models that consider certain assumptions for 
the valuation of instruments without liquidity and no active market and/or observable market data. 
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Notes to the financial statements as at December 31, 2021  
(In thousands of Reais, unless otherwise indicated) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

7. Loan Transactions, Sureties and Honored Guarantees 

 
At December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, loans and guarantees provided through sureties or guarantee agreements in 
the Prudential Conglomerate, classified according to the clients’ economic activities, are as follows: 
 

 

 
 
 
(*) The activities classified as Others include all economic sectors that individually represent less than 1% of 
the total active loan portfolio at the base dates December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020. 
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Notes to the financial statements as at December 31, 2021  
(In thousands of Reais, unless otherwise indicated) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

7. Loan Transactions, Sureties and Honored Guarantees (Continued) 

 
Loan transactions are stated in the Prudential Conglomerate balance sheet as follows: 

 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Current Assets

Loan Transactions 2,835,106 2,183,045

Private Sector 2,817,313 2,154,425

Public Sector 17,793 28,620

Other Receivables 19,682 13,864

Foreign Exchange Portfolio - Receivables (a) 10,017 5,287

Securities and Credits Receivable (b) 9,665               8,577

Noncurrent Assets

Loan Transactions 4,423,790 4,326,334

Private Sector 4,405,263 4,276,654

Public Sector 18,527 49,680

Other Receivables 11,222             17,360             

Securities and Credits Receivable (b) 11,222             17,360             

Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities 492,443 210,121

Foreign Exchange Portfolio - Advances on exchange contracts (a) 492,443 210,121

Subtotal 7,782,243 6,750,724

Co-obligations and risks in guarantees provided (c) 1,525,405 1,184,009

Total 9,307,648 7,934,733

Prudential Conglomerate 

 
 

(a) The Advances on Exchange Contracts are classified as reduction accounts of Other Liabilities – Exchange Portfolio and as 
Other Receivables – Exchange Portfolio, respectively, as shown in Note 8. 

(b) This refers to credit assignment, recorded in “Other credits” account. 

(c) These refer to guarantees granted through sureties and guarantees. The granted guarantees are recorded in offsetting 
accounts and the respective earnings are classified as Results for Future Years and appropriated to the result according to 
the guarantees’ contractual terms. The Bank also includes guarantees provided for the credit operations of BBM Bank 
Limited, which are eliminated in the Prudential Conglomerate. 

 
The provision for loan transactions was calculated according to the criteria established by the CMN Resolutions No. 2,682 and 
No. 2,697, based on the risk classification of the transactions and on their level of arrears. 
 
The classification of the loan transactions in the Prudential Conglomerate is as follows: 
 

Within 15 61 91 181 Within From 91 From 181 Over

14 to 60 to 90 to 180 to 360 90 to 180 to 360 360 days

AA -              -              -              -              -              1,154,255    620,504       592,786       1,873,535    4,241,080    -              4,143,787    -              

A 88               -              -              -              -              316,918       380,722       579,604       2,098,441    3,375,773    16,879         2,591,917    12,960         

B -              13               -              -              -              89,828         165,887       298,470       628,749       1,182,947    12,247         855,565       8,846           

C -              976             -              -              -              82,321         59,520         162,720       169,574       475,111       22,218         316,496       19,761         

D 7                 529             -              -              -              1,585           1,437           2,677           460             6,695           670             -              -              

E -              1,888           -              -              -              -              -              3,640           11,278         16,806         5,042           18,024         5,407           

F -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              4,339           2,170           

G -              -              -              7,518           -              -              -              -              -              7,518           5,262           -              -              

H -              -              -              -              1,718           -              -              -              -              1,718           1,718           4,605           4,605           

95              3,406         -             7,518         1,718         1,644,907  1,228,070  1,639,897  4,782,037  9,307,648  64,036       7,934,733  53,749       

Risk Level Total  Allowance 

Falling due - daysOverdue - days

12/31/2021

 Allowance 

12/31/2020

Total
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7. Loan Transactions, Sureties and Honored Guarantees (Continued) 
 
The allowance below is presented in the Prudential Conglomerate balance sheets as follows: 
 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Allowance for loan losses 48,691 37,741

Current Assets 24,284 16,540

Noncurrent Assets 24,407 21,201

Provision for Other Credits 4,646 1,268

Securities and Credits Receivable 4,646 607

Current Assets 2,891           -              

Noncurrent Assets 1,755           607              

Provision for Advances on Exchange Contracts -             661

Current Assets -              661

Provision for Co-obligations and Risks in Guarantees Provided 10,699 14,740

Current Liability 9,966 13,671

Noncurrent Assets 733 1,069

Total 64,036 53,749  
 
 

Changes in allowances are as follows: 
 

  
 
 
In the year ended December 31, 2021, there were no loan transactions renegotiated in the Prudential Conglomerate (December 
31, 2020 – R$ 34,825 thousand) 
 
In the year ended December 31, 2021, there was a recovery of losses on loan transactions in the amount of R$ 5,482 thousand 
(December 31, 2020 - R$ 5,815 thousand).                    
 
The credit risk concentration in the Prudential Conglomerate statements is as follows: 
 
   
 

12/31/2021 % 12/31/2020 %

Top debtor 262,002    2.8% 271,563           3.4%

Top 10 debtors 1,443,077 15.5% 1,385,395        17.5%

Top 20 debtors 2,337,617 25.1% 2,113,933        26.6%

Top 50 debtors 4,076,071 43.8% 3,591,012        45.3%

Top 100 debtors 5,909,530 63.5% 5,120,335        64.5%  
 
 
 
 
The breakdown of the Prudential Conglomerate credit portfolio by type is as follows: 

 
 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Working Capital 5,660,819 5,433,410   

Co-obligations and Risk in Guarantees Provided 1,525,405 1,184,009   

Export Credit Notes 1,257,842 710,066      

Trade Finance 786,416 551,635      

Others 77,166 55,613        

Total 9,307,648 7,934,733   
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8. Foreign Exchange Portfolio  

 
 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Other receivables – Foreign exchange portfolio

Foreign exchange purchases pending settlement 509,334          216,889          

Income receivable from advances granted (a) 10,017           1,302             

Rights on foreign exchange sales 1,265             5,287             

(-) Advances in national currency received (43)                -                

Total 520,573 223,478

Other payables – Foreign exchange portfolio

Exchange purchase obligations 492,443          210,121          

Foreign exchange sales pending settlement 1,272             1,301             

Advances on foreign exchange contracts granted (a) (492,443)        (210,121)        

Others -                1,478             

Total 1,272 2,779

Prudential Conglomarate

 
 

(a) See Note 7. 
 

On December 31, 2021, there were federal government securities deposited securing foreign exchange transactions with B3 in 
the amount of R$ 311,944 thousand (December 31, 2020 – R$ 65,101 thousand). 

 

 
 
9. Deposits   
 

Maturity range Time deposits
Interbank

deposits

Total

12/31/2021

Total

12/31/2020

   Within 1 month 34,014 180,065        214,079 490,902

   From 1 to 3 months 242,409 -              242,409 322,417

   From 3 to 6 months 92,127 -              92,127 109,642

   From 6 to 12 months 121,611 581,402        703,013 191,517

   More than 12 months 656,501 -              656,501 1,058,535

Subtotal 1,146,662 761,467 1,908,129 2,173,013

Demand Deposits 327,559 629,320

Total 2,235,688 2,802,333
 

 
 
                                                                                                                                              

The average term of interbank and time deposits for outstanding transactions at December 31, 2021 is 558 days and 822 days 
(December 31, 2020 - 640 and 605 days), respectively. 
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9. Deposits (Continued) 
 

Maturities upon issuance Time deposits
Interbank

deposits

Total

06/30/2021

Total

12/31/2020

Within 1 month 16,707 180,065        196,772        69,189        

From 1 to 3 months 161,857 -              161,857        314,663      

From 3 to 6 months 46,458 -              46,458         127,898      

From 6 to 12 months 53,934 -              53,934         106,859      

More than 12 months 867,706 581,402 1,449,108     1,554,404   

Subtotal 1,146,662 761,467 1,908,129   2,173,013 

Demand deposits 327,559        629,320      

Total 2,235,688   2,802,333 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

The breakdown per segment of the Prudential Conglomerate is as follows: 
 

 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020 12/31/2021 12/31/2020 12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Legal entities 285,063    554,524    810,404    1,140,506   -          121,773    1,095,468 49.00% 1,816,803 64.83%

Institutional customers 4             4             113,699    281,833     159,039    180,907    272,742 12.20% 462,744 16.51%

Group 20,778     48,839     139,919    107,504     -          -          160,697 7.19% 156,343 5.58%

Financial institutions -          -          24,483     -            602,428    336,488    626,911 28.04% 336,488   12.01%

Individuals 21,714     25,953     58,157     4,002         -          -          79,871 3.57% 29,955 1.07%

Total 327,559 629,320 1,146,662 1,533,845 761,467 639,168 2,235,688 100% 2,802,333 100%

TotalInterbank deposits

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Demand deposits Time deposits

 
 

 
 

 

Top depositor 498,762 22.03% 301,392 10.76%

Top 10 depositors 981,382 43.35% 862,198 30.77%

Top 20 depositors 1,275,175 56.33% 1,191,485 42.52%

Top 50 depositors 1,718,296 75.90% 1,764,153 62.95%

Top 100 depositors 1,975,720 87.27% 2,251,511 80.34%

12/31/2021 12/31/2020
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10. Repurchase Agreements  
   

The obligations from repurchase agreements in the Prudential Conglomerate are as follows: 
 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Own Portfolio

National treasury notes 623,389          -                 

Debentures 362,990          281,578          

National Treasury Bills 270,445          -                 

Financial treasury bills 259,247          9,630             

Eurobonds 215,529          -                 

1,731,600 291,208

Current liabilities 1,719,830       276,496          

Noncurrent liabilities 11,770            14,712            

Total 1,731,600     291,208        

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 

 
The main variation was the increase in the position of prefixed National treasury notes, which the acquisition happened in 
December 30, 2021, maturing on January 3, 2022 and they were settled on the same date. 

 
11. Funds from Acceptance and Issuance of Securities  

 

On December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, fundraising through Agribusiness Credit Bills (LCA), Housing Credit Bills (LCI), 
Financial Bills (LF), Guaranteed Financial Bills (LFG) and Financial Bills – Subordinated Debt were segregated by maturity range 
as follows: 
 

Maturity 06/30/2021 12/31/2020 06/30/2021 12/31/2020 06/30/2021 12/31/2020 06/30/2021 12/31/2020 06/30/2021 12/31/2020

Within 1 month 118,883      107,225      -           2,647        122,915      26,045        -          -           -           -               

From 1 to 3 months 55,157        155,825      -           6,298        135,857      18,886        -          -           5,996        -               

From 3 to 6 months 124,543      229,523      598          7,720        42,297        101,896      -          92,045      -           -               

From 6 to 12 months 803,660      236,073      16,660      40,318      486,249      355,894      -          749,427    -           -               

More than 12 months 985,267      722,183      30,652      10,459      645,674      954,028      -          -           200,000    201,760        

-             -           -             -           -               

Total 2,087,510 1,450,829 47,910    67,442    1,432,992 1,456,749 -         841,472  205,996  201,760      

Prudential Conglomerate

LCA (a) LCI (b) LF (c) LF - Subordinated debt (e)LFG (d)

 
 

 

(a) Agribusiness Credit Bills (LCA) are issued by the Bank and registered with B3, according to Laws No. 11,076/2004 and No. 
11,311/2006 and subsequent amendments. The range between rates used for this operation are 85% of DI – 123% of DI and 
100% of pre-set. 
 

(b) Housing Credit Bills (LCI) are nominative securities created by Provisional Measure No. 2,223 on September 4, 2001, which 
resulted in Law No. 10,931 of August 2, 2004. The range between rates used for this operation are 92% of DI – 120.7% of DI. 

 

(c) Financial Bills (LF) are issued by the Bank and registered with B3 - according to the Law No. 12,249/10 (Section II, articles 37 
to 43), and ruled by CMN (Law No. 3,836). The range between rates used for this operation are 100% of DI – 129% DI, 100% 
of pre-set and 100% of IPCA.  

 

(d) Financial Letter with Guarantee (LFG) is regulated by Resolution No. 4,795 through which the Central Bank of Brazil is authorized 

to carry out loan operations under specific conditions through direct acquisition, in the primary market, of Financial Bills with 
financial assets or securities as guarantees. The rates used for this operation are 100% of SELIC. 

 

(e) Financial Bill (LF) - Subordinated Debt has a perpetual term and a repurchase option starting within 5 semiannual windows. The 
Bank uses the amount raised as complementary capital in order to make up the institution's Level I capital. The issue was 

private and carried out with the Bank's shareholder base. The rates used for this operation are 110% of SELIC. 
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12. Borrowings  
 

a) Borrowings abroad 
 
Borrowings abroad in the Prudential Conglomerate are as follows: 
 

12/31/2020 12/31/2020

Obligations with borrowings abroad (*)      4,568,886     3,300,574 

Export credit facility          66,422        146,673 

Import credit facility          28,121         15,569 

   4,663,429   3,462,816 

Current liabilities      3,448,121     2,313,174 

Long-term payables      1,215,308     1,149,642 

   4,663,429   3,462,816 

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 
 

(*) The amount of R$ 4,568,886 thousand on December 31, 2021 (December 31,2020 – R$ 3,300,574 thousand), classified as 
Borrowings Abroad, refers:  
1 - To the fundraising in U.S. dollars with Bank of Communications with final maturity up to September 2022 representing R$ 
618,214 and March 2023 representing the amount of R$ 378,233. The range between rates used for this operation is 0.90% – 
1.01%; 
2 - Money market operations in dollars and renminbi, taken with the Bank of Communications GMC, with maturities of less than 
365 days representing R$ 1,467,350 and maturities up to January 2026 representing R$ 558,050, with the Bank of 
Communications Macau, with maturities of less than 365 days representing R$ 35,480, with the Bank of Communications New 
York, with maturities of less than 365 days representing R$ 558,458 and with the Bank of Communications Hong Kong, with 
maturities of less than 365 days representing R$ 750 and maturities up to September 2023 representing R$ 279,025. The range 
between rates used for this operation is 0.30% – 3.00%; and; 
3 - Working capital operations with maturities of less than 365 days representing R$ 673,326. The range between rates used 
for this operation is 0.88% – 1.10%. 
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13. Sundry  
 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Other receivables - Sundry

Debtors deposits on warranty 52,555           53,209           

Taxes and contributions to offset 42,665           35,127           

Sundry debtors – domestic 12,914           16,185           

Sundry debtors – foreign 2,940             4,332             

Advances – Salaries and constructions 465                813                

111,539       109,666       

Current asset 94,911           51,690           

Long-term asset 16,628           57,976           

111,539   109,666       

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Other payables - Sundry

Sundry debtors – Abroad (a) 188,003         149,466         

Allowance for payments to be made 12,855           11,301           

Allowance for contingent liabilities 12,462           13,201           

Sundry debtors – Domestic 7,661             13,361           

Administrative checks 849                724                

221,830       188,053       

Current liabilities 202,277         168,403         

Non-current liabilities 19,553           19,650           

221,830   188,053       

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 

 
(a) – It mainly refers to the prepayment of letters of credit. The original maturity date of these contracts were from 
May 25, 2022, September 16, 2022 and November 11, 2022. 
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14. Other Assets 
 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Other Values and Goods

Properties 8,323             13,454           

Others 2,691             2,480             

11,014 15,934

Current asset (a) 10,187           15,934           

Long-term assets 827               -                

11,014 15,934

Prudential Conglomerate

               
                                

(a) On December 31, 2021, the amount of R$ 8,323 thousand, classified as current assets, refers mainly to the execution of 
guarantee of properties, recorded as properties not for use (BNDU), according to independent appraisal report, limited 
to the value of debt. In the year ended December 31, 2021, the bank BOCOM BBM has sold one of its buildings received 
as guarantee for credit operations resulting in R$ 1,261 thousand of profit.  
 

 
15. Intangible assets 

 

 

12/31/2020 Acquisitions Write Off
Amortization 

in the period
12/31/2021

Intangible

Data processing systems

Cost 33,715           16,314           (936)              49,093           

Accrued Amortization (12,171)          125                (7,097)            (19,143)          

Communication and security systems

Cost 922                922                

Accrued Amortization (441)              (164)              (605)              

Licenses and copyright and use rights

Cost 4,405             4,405             

Accrued Amortization (1,494)            (756)              (2,250)            

Total 24,936         16,314         (811)             (8,017)          32,422          
 

16. Equity 
 
 

(a) Capital - Banco BOCOM BBM S.A. 
 

The capital comprises 282,201,085 registered shares with a par value of R$ 1.60 each, divided into 188,626,652 common 
shares and 93,574,433 preferred shares.  Each common share is entitled to 1 (one) vote in resolutions of the General Meeting.  

Preferred shares have no voting rights. 
 

(b) Legal reserve 

 
This reserve is calculated at the rate of 5% of the net income at each balance sheet date, up to the limit of 20% of capital, as 
determined by the Corporation Law. 

 

(c) Statutory reserve 
 

In accordance with the articles of incorporation, this reserve represents the remaining balance of net income at each balance 
sheet date, after the legal allocations. 
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(d) Treasury shares 
 

On December 31, 2021, the Bank BOCOM BBM has 76,296,769 shares to be held in treasury in the amount of R$ 181,839 
thousand. 
  

(e) Interest on Equity 
 
According to article 9 of Law No. 9.249/95 and its subsequent amendments, Banco BOCOM BBM S.A., at the end of 2021, 
declared interest on equity of R$ 35,375 thousand (2020 – R$ 31,792 thousand), with withholding income tax of R$ 5,306 
thousand (2020 - R$ 4,769 thousand), calculated at a 15% rate.  The amount of interest on equity was determined based on 
the legal limits in force and classified in the group’s official records as "Other Operating Expenses". 
 
For the purposes of the publication of the statement of operations, as established by CMN Resolution No. 4,706, BOCOM BBM 
S.A., recognized as other obligations, as a counterpart for the appropriate equity account, the declared capital remuneration 
was set by the obligation at balance sheet date. 
 
Interest on equity proposed at the end of 2021 reduced tax burden by R$ 17,688 thousand (2020 - R$ 14,306 thousand). 
 
In the year ended December 31, 2021, R$ 27,023 thousand was paid as interest on equity. 

 
(f) Dividends 

 
 

 
 

(a) The minimum mandatory dividends decided as Interest on Equity and dividends. 
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17.  Financial Intermediation Expenses, Result of Foreign Exchange Operations, Loans, Assignments 

and Onlending Operations 
 

Second half of 

2021
12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Market funding operations

Financial bills (52,303)        (84,533)        (57,438)        

Agriculture credit bills (58,195)        (82,119)        (33,285)        

Time deposits (33,784)        (50,559)        (30,694)        

Interbank deposits (21,222)        (31,881)        (3,500)          

Foreign exchange variation (a) (29,827)        (13,145)        32,730          

Repurchase agreements (16,545)        (23,034)        (8,887)          

Credit guarantee fund (2,537)          (5,055)          (3,566)          

Real estate credit bills (1,587)          (2,319)          (3,386)          

Deposits previous notice (267)             (543)             (722)             

Expenses with securities abroad (15)               (8)                (85,700)        

(216,282)    (293,196)    (194,448)    

Loans, assignments and onlending operations

Foreign exchange variation (a) (250,676)       (93,631)        (287,328)       

Loan expenses abroad (22,997)        (44,150)        (57,673)        

(273,673)    (137,781)    (345,001)    

Foreing Exchange Transactions

Foreign exchange variations and interest differences (48,312)        (21,985)        144,822        

Other expenses (304)             (550)             (598)             

Revenue from Advances on Exchange Contracts (ACC) 11,837          19,571          22,758          

(36,779)      (2,964)        166,982      

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 

 
(a) This substantially represents the effects of foreign exchange variations on loans raised by the Bank from its branch 

abroad through the transfer of funds raised in foreign currency. In the year ended December 31, 2021, the increase of 
the dollar justifies the expenses of exchange variation. 

 

18. Service Revenue 

 

Second half of 

2021
12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Service Revenue

Management and performance fees of investment funds 22,942          45,056          24,687          

Bank fee income 29,131          41,238          53,023          

Guarantees commision and letter of credit 14,496          26,288          17,332          

Structuring commission 12,083          21,473          5,917            

Other services 3,025            5,350            4,496            

Total 81,677 139,405 105,455

Prudential Conglomerate
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19. Other Administrative Expenses  
 

Second half of 

2021
12/31/2021 12/31/2020

 Data processing  (6,154)             (11,337)           (9,728)             

 Amortization and depreciation (5,169)             (9,908)             (7,708)             

 Rentals (5,095)             (9,750)             (7,890)             

 Specialized technical services (4,302)             (8,459)             (7,236)             

 Financial system services (a) (3,598)             (6,666)             (5,737)             

 Communications (2,258)             (4,772)             (4,610)             

 Third-party services (2,048)             (3,544)             (2,674)             

 Condominium (872)                (1,983)             (2,049)             

 Property maintenance and upkeep (1,064)             (1,885)             (1,645)             

 Promotion/ Advertising/ Publications (992)                (1,824)             (1,260)             

 Travel (951)                (1,262)             (1,262)             

 Registry (802)                (1,251)             (1,560)             

 Water, energy and gas (412)                (782)                (856)                

 Transportation (415)                (642)                (414)                

 Fines (68)                 (185)                (178)                

 Material (53)                 (80)                 (260)                

 Insurance -                 (21)                 (40)                 

 Surveillance and security services -                 -                 (771)                

 Other administrative expenses (4,125)             (6,602)             (5,265)             

(38,378)         (70,953)         (61,143)         

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 
 

(a) - In the year ended December 31, 2021, this includes brokerage expenses, charges and commission related to guarantee 
transactions and derivative financial instruments of R$ 2,267 thousand (December 31, 2020 - R$ 1,692 thousand). 
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20. Related-parties’ Significant Transactions 
 

a) The transactions between related-parties were carried out using the average rates practiced by the market, effective on the 
operations dates, as follows: 

 

Rate 12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Asset

Cash and cash equivalents 499               531               

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd - Disponibilidades 30                  90                  

Bank of Communications - GMC  - Disponibilidades 10                  90                  

Bocom Hong Kong 18                  40                  

Bocom Macau - Disponibilidades 441                 401                 

Loan Operations 52,985 -                

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd 1.02% - 1.07% 52,659 -                 

Other related individuals/legal entities 100% CDI + 1.1 326 -                 

Derivative Financial Instruments 73,581 64,323          

Bocom Brazil Holding Company Ltda-Ativo Derivativo 73,581 64,323            

Marketable Securities 35,242 -                

Bocom Macau 2.68% - 3.05% 35,242 -                 

Liabilities

Demand Deposits 20,778 48,839

Évora S.A. 10 10

Bahia AM Renda Fixa Ltda 5 5

Bahia AM Renda Variável Ltda 5 4

Bocom Brazil Holding Company Ltda 24 39,087

Bahia Holding S.A. 1 5

Other related individuals/legal entities 20,733 9,728

Time Deposits 139,919 107,504

Bahia Holding S.A. 97% DI - 97.2% DI 11,516 18,101

Évora S.A. 97% DI 3,592 3,445

Aleutas  S.A. 97.5% DI 54,122 54,812

Colares  Participações  S/A 97% DI 2,105 8,882              

Bocom Brazil Holding Company Ltda 97% DI 68,549 22,264

Other related individuals/legal entities 115% DI 35 - 

Debentures Agreements - Debentures 79,065 27,023

Other related individuals/legal entities 100% DI 79,065 27,023

Government Bonds Agreements - Debentures 23,069 - 

Other related individuals/legal entities 23,069 - 

Financial Bills 290               -                

Other related individuals/legal entities 100% - 111% DI 290                 -                

Agriculture Credit Bills 173,674 239,984

Other related individuals/legal entities 92% - 123% DI 173,674 239,984

Real Estate Credit Bills 46,180 59,581

Other related individuals/legal entities 92% - 120.7% DI 46,180 59,581

Derivative Financial Instruments 146,400 121,313

Bocom Brazil Holding Company Ltda-Passivo Derivativo 146,400 121,313

Subordinated Debt 205,996 201,760

Bocom Brazil Holding Company Ltda 110% SELIC 165,441 162,039

Other related individuals/legal entities 110% SELIC 40,555 39,721

Liabilities on Loans Abroad 3,895,561 2,724,090

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd 0.75% - 1.01% 996,447 873,917

Bocom Macau 2.63% - 3.0% 35,480 16,121            

Bank of Communications - GMC 0.45% - 0.96% 2,025,401 1,574,162        

Bocom Hong Kong 0.99% 279,775 259,890          

Bocom NY 0.3% - 0.47% 558,458 - 

Dividends and Bonuses Payable 30,068 27,023

Interest on capital credited to shareholders 30,068            27,023

Prudential Conglomerate
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20. Related-parties’ Significant Transactions (Continued) 
 

 

Second Half of 2021 12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Result

Result with Derivative Financial Instruments (20,872)                 (11,900) 130,542 

Bocom Brazil Holding Company Ltda (20,872) (11,900) 130,626 

Other related individuals/legal entities - - (84) 

Income with Marketable Securities 593                        593 - 

Bocom Macau - Resultado TVM 593 593 - 

Loans operations Income 293 293 - 

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.- Resultado 277 277                 - 

Other related individuals/legal entities 16 16                  - 

Open Market Funding (21,527) (31,373) (18,349) 

Time Deposits Expenses (3,711)                   (5,382) (3,575) 

Évora S.A. (104) (146) (91) 

Bocom Brazil Holding Company Ltda (1,443) (2,094) (629) 

Bahia Holding S.A. (397) (590) (978) 

Aleutas  S.A. (1,595) (2,271) (1,705) 

Colares  Participações  S/A (171) (280) (172) 

Other related individuals/legal entities (1) (1) - 

Repurchase Agreements - Debentures Expenses (1,377) (1,647) (1,039) 

Other related individuals/legal entities (1,377)                     (1,647) (1,039) 

Repurchase Agreements - Government Bonds (3,707) (5,869) - 

Other related individuals/legal entities (3,707)                     (5,869) - 

Agriculture Credit Bills Expenses (4,538) (6,857) (6,857) 

Other related individuals/legal entities (4,538) (6,857) (6,857) 

Real Estate Credit Bills Expenses (1,396) (2,032) (1,603) 

Other related individuals/legal entities (1,396) (2,032) (1,603) 

Financial Bills Expenses (10) (10) - 

Other related individuals/legal entities (10) (10) - 

Subordinated Debt (6,788) (9,576) (5,275) 

Bocom Brazil Holding Company Ltda (5,452) (7,694) (4,205) 

Other related individuals/legal entities (1,336) (1,882) (1,070) 

Loans Expenses Abroad (16,194) (31,830) (46,704) 

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.- Resultado (6,881) (13,169) (18,658) 

Bocom Macau - Resultado (358) (591) (472) 

Bank of Communications - GMC - Resultado (6,808) (14,498) (26,817) 

Bocom Hong Kong - Resultado (1,410) (2,753) (757) 

Bocom NY (737) (819) - 

Foreign Exchange Variation with Loans Abroad (5,883) 26,476 (244,182) 

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.- Resultado Cambial (96,752) (64,193) (240,507) 

Bocom Macau - Resultado Cambial 90,869 90,669 (3,675) 

Expenses with Dividends and Bonuses (35,374)                 (35,374) (31,792) 

Interest on Equity (35,374) (35,374) (31,792) 

Total (98,964) (83,115) (210,485) 

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 
b) Key Management Compensation 

 
The total compensation will be calculated as follows: 

 

I) Fixed and variable compensation  

 

The total compensation of the Participants will comprise a fixed and a variable part. The variable compensation of the 
Participants will be paid as follows: 

 

(a) The amount equivalent to at most 50% (fifty percent) of the variable compensation will be paid in cash, 
immediately available for the Participant (“Short-term compensation”); and 

 

(b) The amount equivalent to at least 50% (fifty percent) of the variable compensation will be deferred for payment 
within 3 (three) years, considering the provisions below (“Deferred Compensation” together with “Short-term 
Compensation” and “Variable Compensation”).   
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20. Related-parties’ Significant Transactions (Continued) 

 

The minimum and maximum amounts of the Variable Compensation of the Participants will be fixed by the Administrative 
Council of Banco Bocom BBM. 
 

II) Deferred compensation 

 
The payment of the deferred compensation will be carried out on a scaled basis, every six months, in shares proportional to 
the deferral period (“Deferred Compensation Shares”), and all the deferred shares should be updated by the ROE of Banco 
Bocom BBM. In the year ended December 31, 2021, the payment of Deferred Remuneration occurred through repurchase 
agreements backed by public securities. 
 
ROE is the profit before tax for the period divided by the Equity at the beginning of the period. 
 

 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Liabilities

Statutory 18,035 15,254 

Management Variable Compensation - Short Term 6,121 7,410 

Deferred Management Variable Compensation - Long Term 11,914 7,844 

Second Half of 

2021
12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Result (28,962) (55,700) (30,861) 

Fixed Compensation (11,699) (21,063) (11,099) 

Variable Compensation Provision (17,263) (34,637) (19,762) 

Prudential Conglomerate

Prudential Conglomerate

 
  

 

21. Derivative Financial Instruments  
 

The Bank and the other institutions of the Prudential Conglomerate participate in transactions involving derivative financial 
instruments to meet their own needs as well as on behalf of their clients.  
 
Derivative financial instruments are classified according to management’s intent at the inception of the transaction, taking into 
consideration whether or not the purpose is to hedge risks. 
 
In accordance with BACEN Circular Letter No. 3,082, the derivative financial instruments assigned to offset, in whole or in part, 
exposure to risks from assets, liabilities, commitments or projected future transactions (hedged items), provided that they are 
considered effective in reducing the risk associated with the exposure to be hedged, are classified according to their nature. 
 

 These transactions are traded, recorded or held on B3.  In the Prudential Conglomerate, international derivative transactions 
are traded and recorded in the OTC market, at the Chicago Board of Trade (CBOT) or Chicago Mercantile Exchange (CME). 

 
 The criteria used to calculate the market values of the derivative financial instruments are: 
  

- Futures: value of daily adjustments to the transactions; 
- Swap and term transactions: Cash flow is estimated for each part, discounted to present value according to the corresponding 

interest rate curves, obtained based on B3 prices or on the assets’ prices; 
- Options: average trading price on the calculation date or, when not available, estimated price based on pricing models, such as 

Black & Scholes. 
 
At December 31, 2021, the guarantees for the transactions involving derivative financial instruments are represented mainly by 
government securities in the total amount of R$ 578,159 thousand (December 31, 2020 - R$ 460,987 thousand) and fund 
quotas in the total amount of R$ 27,582 thousand (December 31, 2020 - R$ 26,723 thousand). 
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21. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 

 

a) At cost and market value 
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21. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 
 

The futures market includes the following positions maturing on the first business day of the subsequent month:  
 

- Purchased foreign exchange coupon contracts (DDI) of R$ 4,305,243 thousand (December 31, 2020 – R$ 2,597,208 
thousand); 
 

- Sold foreign exchange coupon contracts (DDI) of R$ 436,778 thousand (December 31, 2020 – R$ 341,744 thousand); 
 

- Purchased interest contracts (DI1) of R$ 858,032 thousand; (December 31, 2020 – R$ 466,131 thousand); 
 

- Sold interest contracts (DI1) of R$ 488,852 thousand; (December 31, 2020 – R$ 1,010,341 thousand); 
 

- Purchased currency contracts (DOL) of R$ 365,725 thousand; (December 31, 2020 – R$ 392,716 thousand); 
 

- Sold currency contracts (DOL) of R$ 1,725,701 thousand (December 31, 2020 – R$ 782,117 thousand); 
 

- Purchased currency contracts (DAP) of R$ 64,178 thousand; (December 31, 2020 – R$ 43,404 thousand);  
 

- Sold currency contracts (DAP) of R$ 184,713 thousand (December 31, 2020 – R$ 131,633 thousand). 
 
Net gains (losses) on derivative financial instruments are as follows:  

  
 
 

Second half of 

2021
12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Future contracts 302,766        97,708       496,910    

Options contracts 3,173           19,555       12,473     

Swap and term contracts (61,891)        24,654       (344,725)  

Total 244,048      141,917   164,658  

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 
 
 

The main factor of the variation in the result of derivatives is due to the devaluation of Brazilian real against U.S. dollar, taking 
into account that most of our derivatives are used as hedging instruments. 

 
d)   Hedge accounting  

 

Fundraising fair value hedge (I) 
 

During the 3rd quarter of 2017 and the 1st quarter of 2020, Banco BOCOM BBM entered into loan agreements in U.S. dollars 
with Bank of Communications Shanghai Branch with the objective of providing funding. They are as follows: 
 
- On September 6, 2017 in the amount of USD 35,000 thousand with payment of pre-fixed interest of 0.90% p.a.. 
- On September 18, 2017 in the amount of USD 30,000 thousand with payment of fixed interest of 0.90% p.a.. 
- On September 11, 2017 in the amount of USD 35,000 thousand with payment of fixed interest of 0.90% p.a.. 
- On March 25, 2020 in the amount of USD 67,500 thousand with payment of fixed interest of 1.01% p.a..  
- On December 11, 2021 in the amount of USD 10,000 thousand with payment of fixed interest of 0.75% p.a..  

  
  

In order to index these flows to the CDI, a series of exchange coupon operations were carried out at B3, in accordance with 
the maturities and exposures of the available FRC contracts and the maturity of the operations. Disbursements were made in 
U.S. dollars and, upon cash receipt, a market risk hedge was contracted, designating a portfolio of derivative financial 
instruments, comprising DDI, DOL and ED contracts for total hedge, considering the foreign exchange exposure and interest 
rate risks. In order to equalize the mark-to-market effects of derivative financial instruments designated as hedge, the amount 
of the hedge principal, plus interest due, is stated at fair value and also marked to market. 
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21. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 
 
Due to the fact that there is a matching of hedge object flows and the results of hedge derivatives, the effectiveness of the 
operation remains close to 100.57%. 
 

12/31/2020

Hedge object
Result of 

the object

Result of the 

hedge 

instrument

Effectiveness Effectiveness

Fundraising (I) (242,387)    243,773             100.57% 90.34%

12/31/2021

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 

 

Fundraising fair value hedge (II)  
 
In June 2017, Banco BOCOM BBM designated a portfolio of derivative financial instruments constituted by DI1 and DAP 
contracts, with the objective of indexing to the CDI part of its funding portfolio indexed to the IPCA. In order to equalize the 
effects of mark-to-market derivative financial instruments designated as hedge, the value of the funding portfolio indexed to 
the IPCA is stated at fair value and also marked to market. 

 
In December 2018, Banco BOCOM BBM designated a portfolio of derivative financial instruments constituted by DI1 and DAP 
contracts, with the objective of indexing to the CDI part of its pre-fixed funding portfolio. In order to equalize the effects of 
mark-to-market derivative financial instruments designated as hedge, the value of the pre-fixed funding portfolio is stated at 
fair value and also marked to market. 
 
 
Due to the fact that there is a matching of hedge object flows and the results of hedge derivatives, the effectiveness of the 
operation remains 98.69% to LF IPCA and 99.44% to LF PRÉ. 
 

12/31/2020

Hedge object
Result of 

the object

Result of the 

hedge 

instrument

Effectiveness Effectiveness

Fundraising (II) - LF IPCA (367)           363                   98.69% 102.37%

Fundraising (II) - LF PRÉ 8,772         (8,723)               99.44% 99.97%

12/31/2021

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 
 

 

Credit operations fair value hedge 
 

In August 2017, Banco BOCOM BBM designated a portfolio of derivative financial instruments comprising Euro Dollar Futures 
contracts (ED), in order to hedge the U.S. Dollar short-term interest rate variations. In order to equalize the effects of the 
mark to market of the derivative financial instruments assigned as hedge, the amount of USD 29,761 thousand of the credit 

operation released in August 2017 by Banco BOCOM BBM SA Nassau Branch, with a fixed interest rate of 4.28 % p.a., is 
stated at fair value and also marked to market. 
 
Due to the fact that there is a matching of hedge object flows and the results of hedge derivatives, the effectiveness of the 
operation remains close to 98.90%. 
 

12/31/2020

Hedge object
Result of 

the object

Result of the 

hedge 

instrument

Effectiveness Effectiveness

Credit Operations (172)           170                   98.90% 95.66%

12/31/2021

Prudential Conglomerate
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21. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 
 

 

Investment cash flow hedge abroad  
 
In September 2016, CMN edited the Resolution No. 4,524, establishing the criteria to record the transactions with financial 
instruments contracted in order to mitigate the risks associated to the foreign exchange exposure of the investments abroad. 
 

In January 2017, Banco BOCOM BBM assigned a derivative financial instruments portfolio constituted by DI1 and DOL 
contracts, with the purpose of hedging the foreign exchange rate risk of its investment abroad in the amount of USD 5,000,000, 
which is consolidated in the Prudential Conglomerate.  
 

Due to the fact that there is a matching of hedge object flows and the results of hedge derivatives, the effectiveness of the 
transaction remained close to 100.00%. 
 

12/31/2020

Hedge object
Result of 

the object

Result of the 

hedge 

instrument

Effectiveness Effectiveness

Investiment Abroad 8,371         (8,371)               100.00% 101.34%

Prudential Conglomerate

12/31/2021

 
 

 
Bonds held to maturity fair value hedge 

 
In June 2020, Banco BOCOM BBM designated a portfolio of derivative financial instruments consisting of Libor flat swap 
contracts vs. fixed rate in USD, in order to cover the risk of fluctuations in the external profitability of bonds classified as “held 
to maturity” as spread over Libor due to fluctuations in the forward structure of the Libor curve. Because of the matching 

between the flows of the hedge object and the results of the derivatives intended for hedge, the effectiveness of the operation 
was of 103.78%. 
 

12/31/2020

Hedge object
Result of 

the object

Result of the 

hedge 

instrument

Effectiveness Effectiveness

Bonds Held to Maturity Abroad 426            (442)                  103.78% 100.77%

12/31/2021

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 

 

Bonds avaiable for sale cash flow hedge 
 

In January 2021, Banco BOCOM BBM designated a portfolio of derivative financial instruments consisting of Libor flat swap 
contracts vs. fixed rate in USD and in December 2021 SOFR flat swap contracts vs. fixed rate in USD, in order to cover the 
risk of fluctuations in the external profitability of bonds classified as “available for sale” as spread over Libor due to fluctuations 
in the forward structure of the Libor and SOFR curve. Because of the matching between the flows of the hedge object and the 
results of the derivatives intended for hedge, the effectiveness of the operation was of LIBOR 99.24% and SOFR 88.04%. 
 
 

12/31/2020

Hedge object
Result of 

the object

Result of the 

hedge 

instrument

Effectiveness Effectiveness

Bonds Available for Sale Abroad - LIBOR (965)           958                   99.24% -

Bonds Available for Sale Abroad - SOFR 12              (11)                    88.04% -

12/31/2021

Prudential Conglomerate
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22. Risks Management 
 

Market risk 
 

Banco BOCOM BBM was a pioneer in terms of quantifying market risk in Brazil, and developed a proprietary system in 1997 
which became a benchmark for the industry.  The market risk management structure includes the following: a) the Executive 
Board, responsible for reviewing risk management policies and proposing risk management operating limits, submitting these 
for the approval of the Board of Directors at least once a year; b) the Board of Directors, which approves the risk policies and 
limits at least once a year; c) the Market Risk area, subordinated to the Risk Officer, is responsible for identifying, measuring, 
monitoring and reporting online to the Executive Board the Bank’s market risk, ensuring compliance with the market risk 
management policy, as well as guaranteeing that the operational limits are observed; d) the Price department, which, among 
other duties, is responsible for defining the price models and sources used in mark-to-market adjustments of traded products, 
regardless the management departments; e) Internal Audit, which is responsible for ensuring the adequacy of procedures and 
the consistency between market risk management policies and the structure actually implemented. 
 
The market risk is monitored through daily calculations of the Value at Risk (VaR), a statistical tool that measures the 
institution’s maximum potential loss at a given confidence level over a given investment horizon.  A VaR limit is established, 
which may be allocated by the Chief Treasury Officer among the various risk factors.  The VaR calculation model is submitted 

to periodical back testing.  Furthermore, scenarios are analyzed daily, and these scenarios are quarterly defined by the Risk 
Committee, independently of the management departments. A full description of the Bank’s market risk management structure 
is available on Banco BOCOM BBM’s website (www.bancobocombbm.com.br). 
 
Market Risk means the risk arising from fluctuations in the values of assets and derivatives resulting from changes in market 
prices and rates, such as interest, stocks, currencies and commodities. Market Risk control is based on the calculation of VaR 
- Value at Risk, a statistical tool that measures the maximum potential loss of BOCOM BBM for a given confidence level and 
investment horizon. BOCOM BBM's daily VaR limit calculated with 95% confidence is 2% of Equity. The model used to calculate 
the VaR limit is the parametric one. The variance-covariance matrix is reestimated daily using GARCH models. This model 
captures the presence of volatility groupings and, according to the daily estimated parameters, gives more weight to the most 
recent past. It should be noted that other VaR models are available, such as Monte Carlo Simulation and Historical Simulation. 
The effectiveness of the risk model is tested annually through back-testing, which consists in comparing the VaR estimates 
with the actual daily results. 
 
*VaR = Maximum potential risk, given the level of reliability and the investment scenario. For Banco BBM, the limit is 
established based on a 95% likelihood of loss at a maximum of 2% of equity in 1 day. 
 

Reference Date VaR (in R$ Millions)

12/31/2021 3.7

06/30/2021 3.6

12/31/2020 6.1

06/30/2020 4.0  
 

In addition to VaR, stress tests are calculated based on the stress scenarios provided by B3. Based on the envelope scenarios 
for each risk factor, one optimistic and one pessimistic scenario are defined, considering a holding period of 3 business days. 
For risk factors in which there is no shock defined by the B3 scenarios, shocks from related risk factors are used. Thus, based 
on the exposure of the Bank's portfolio to each of the risk factors, the consolidated financial loss of the portfolio under stress 
is calculated for each of the two scenarios. Finally, the scenario with the greatest financial loss is used as a reference. 

 
 

Reference Date B3 Stress (in R$ Millions)

12/31/2021 -111.5

06/30/2021 -57.5

12/31/2020 -20.2  
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22. Risks Management (Continued) 
 
Liquidity risk 

 
Banco BOCOM BBM’s liquidity target is to ensure that at any given time the Bank has sufficient cash to meet all its liabilities 
and other commitments. It is the responsibility of the Liquidity Risk area to monitor whether there is a sufficient free cash 
position to guarantee the continuity of the bank's operations in a severe stress scenario, following the limits and guidelines 
defined by the Risk Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.  
 
Liquidity risk is managed based on cash flow forecasts, considering different scenarios for funding, loan and treasury operations. 
These cash flow analyses take into consideration: (a) the implicit risk of each client, (b) possible additional cash for compulsory 
deposits, (c) derivative adjustments; and (d) other existing obligations.  The general principle is to ensure that the Bank’s 
commitments are aligned with its equity and the current policies for fundraising, credit and treasury. 
 
Banco BOCOM BBM has a liquidity risk management structure comprising the following agents, with their respective 
assignments: a) Liquidity Risk area, subordinated to the Risk Director, which is responsible for centralizing and measuring the 
information referring to liquidity risk management, ensuring that operational limits are observed and disclosing reports to 
support decision making on liquidity risk; b) Internal Audit, which is responsible for ensuring the adequacy of the procedures 
and the consistency between the liquidity risk management policies and the effectively implemented structure.  A full description 
of the Bank’s liquidity risk management structure is available on the website of Banco BOCOM BBM (www.bocombbm.com.br).  

 
 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Current assets 6.228.325       5.162.336       

Current liabilities (9.318.497)     (6.919.320)     

Working capital, net (3.090.172)   (1.756.984)   

Securities available for sale

   presented in long-term receivables
1.738.655       1.354.338       

Loans abroad 2.121.045       1.574.162       

769.527       1.171.516    

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 

 
Banco BOCOM BBM's current liabilities are higher than its current assets calculated according to the nominal maturity of its 
operations. However, part of the current liabilities are loans made to the parent company in the total amount of R$ 2,121,045 
thousands which, despite having a maturity of less than 1 year, are systematically renewed.  
 
 

Credit risk 
 

Banco BOCOM BBM has a credit risk management structure comprising the following elements and respective duties: a) the 
Credit Committee, which is responsible for defining the economic groups’ credit limits, and monitoring and evaluating the 
consolidated portfolio position, its concentration and risk level.  It is also responsible for establishing the terms for solving 
default on credit operations or with a certain level of deterioration of the guarantees and deciding whether or not to initiate 
judicial collection proceedings, as applicable; b) Board of Directors, responsible for approving the risk policies and limits, at 
least once a year; c) Credit Risk area, subordinated to the Risk Director, is responsible for centralizing and evaluating information 
related to the individual and consolidated credit risk management, per operation, ensuring that operating limits are complied 
with, disclosing reports that make it easy to make a decision related to credit limits approved by the Credit Committee. It is 
also the responsibility of the risk area to previously evaluate new operational genres related to credit risk; d) Credit Analysis 
area, responsible for assessing the credit risk of economic groups with which the Bank maintains or intends to maintain credit 
relationships; e) Internal Audit, which carries out periodic audits of the business units and of the Credit processes of the Group; 
f) Legal Department, responsible for analyzing the contracts entered into by Banco BOCOM BBM and its clients, as well as 
coordinating measures to recover credits or protect the Bank’s rights; and g) Contracts Department, responsible for checking 
the adherence of operations to the parameters established in the Credit Limit Proposal ("PLC"), as well as providing the adequate 
guarantees.  It is also responsible for issuing contracts to be entered into by Banco BOCOM BBM and the client.  A full description 
of the credit risk management structure is available on the website of Banco BOCOM BBM (www.bocombbm.com.br). 
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22. Risks Management 

 
Operational risk 
 
Aligned to the orientation of the Regulation Bodies and to the best market practices, Banco BOCOM BBM (“BOCOM BBM”) 
established the “Operating Risk Management Policy”, which defined principles, procedures and responsibilities to be observed 
in order that the internal controls systems of BOCOM BBM work and are strengthened, seeking to mitigate the risks according 
to the complexity of its businesses, as well as to dissiminate the culture of the controls to ensure the compliance with laws, 
regulations and other internal standards.  
 
The Internal Controls and Operating Risk area is a seggregated independent organizational area of Internal Audit, under the 
responsibility of the Risk and Internal Controls Officer. The area is responsible for performing, together with the other 

components of the risk management structure, in order to comply with the guidelines established by the mentioned Policy.  
 
The complete description of the operating risk management structure is available for the public in the website of Banco BOCOM 
BBM na Internet (www. BOCOMbbm.com.br). 

Capital management 

Banco BOCOM BBM manages its capital through a structure comprising the following bodies: Board of Directors, Executive 
Board, Internal Control, Capital and Risk Board, Treasury Board, Fund Raising Board, Back Office, Business Units and Audit 
Board.  The Board of Directors is the highest body within this structure, in charge of monitoring the capital adequacy.  The 
Executive Board must review the documents to be submitted to the Board of Directors, as well as approving the methodologies 
to be used for the management and monitoring of the capital adequacy.  Capital management and centralization is a 
responsibility of the Capital and Risk Board, which must continuously work to improve and oversee the institution’s compliance 
with the capital management policy and its capital plan.  The Treasury and Fundraising Boards are responsible for planning the 
issuance of equity instrument, if necessary.  The capital management department periodically generates reports on the capital 
adequacy, which are sent to the Executive Board and the Board of Directors.  

These reports comprise simulations of severe events and extreme market conditions.  The Business Units must provide all 
information that the Internal Control, Capital and Risk Board deems necessary for effective capital management.  The Audit 
department is responsible for evaluating, from time to time, the effectiveness of the capital management process.  The 
description of the capital management structure is available on the website of Banco BOCOM BBM (www.bocombbm.com.br). 

 

23. Operating Limits 
 

In October 2013, the new rules related to capital measurement became effective. The financial institutions and similar entities 
have to maintain minimum equity of 8.0% of their assets, weighted by grades of risk to expositions in gold, foreign exchange 
and operations subject to the operating risk and to the variations in: foreign exchange, interest rate, price of commodities 
and price of shares classified as held in portfolio for trade, according to BACEN’s rules and instructions. The Prudential 
Conglomerate of Banco BOCOM BBM is within this operational limit on December 31,2021.  
)  

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Reference Equity Level I 1,013,478 935,748

Adjusted equity 1,046,804 966,087

Decrease in intangible / deferred assets according to CMN Resolution No. 4,192 33,326 30,339

Reference Equity (PR) 1,013,478 935,748

Risk-Weighted Assets (RWA) 641,542 521,100

Portion referring to:

Credit risk (RWACPAD) 554,456 447,457

Foreign exchange risk (PCAM) 10,508 10,353

Interest rate risk (RWAMPAD) 6,167 4,360

Operating risk (RWAOPAD) 70,411 58,930

Margin or Insufficiency Value (PR - RWA) 371,936 414,648

Risk Factor – 8.00% of PR 81,078 74,860

Basel Rate (Risk Factor / RWA) 12.64% 14.37%

RBAN 89,265 62,754

ACP required 160,386 81,422

Reference Equity Margin + RBAN 122,285 270,472

Prudential Conglomerate
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24. Income Tax and Social Contribution 

 
Changes in tax credits and provision for deferred taxes on temporary differences are as follows: 
 
 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Asset credit tax: 107,332           68,292             

Balance at January 1

Constitution (Reversal)

- With effects in the result (369)                  26,367               

- With effects in equity

(Securities held for sale) 10,752               12,673               

Balance at December 31 117,715 107,332

Provision for deferred taxes: (*)

Balance at January 1 58,935             19,199             

Constitution (Reversal)

- With effects in the result 29,936               39,736               

- With effects in equity

(Securities available for sale) -                    -                    

Balance at December 31 88,871 58,935

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 

 
(*) The amount of provision for deferred taxes is recorded as Other tax and social security obligations. 
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24. Income Tax and Social Contribution (Continued) 

 
Attending the BCB Resolution No. 15/2020, in its 13th article, the constitutions and realizations in asset credit taxes and 
provision for deferred taxes were highlighted, just like their nature and origins, as it is being shown at the table below: 
 

 

12/31/2021 Constitution Reversal 12/31/2020

Asset credit tax:

Temporary differences (a)

- Provision for loan transactions 30,738 5,914 8,673 33,497

- Market value adjustment - marketable securities and derivatives 66,680 91,605 74,532 49,607

- Provisions for Contingencies (Note 25) 5,596 207 545 5,934

- Others 13,797 25,007 24,100 12,890

Social Contribution Negative Basis 411 25 1,953 2,339

Tax loss 493 3 2,575 3,065

Total 117,715 122,761 112,378 107,332

Provision for deferred taxes

Temporary differences (a)

- Market ajustment of securities and derivatives 88,834 101,279 131,215 58,898

- Adjustment of Selic Interest rate on Judicial Deposits

- Others 37                     -                    -                    37                     

Total 88,871 101,279 131,215 58,935

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 
(a) It is expected that these tax credits will be realized up to the end of 2025 for income tax and social contribution, with a 
present value of R$ 20 million respectively.  The Social Contribution on tax credits was calculated considering a new rate in 
force of 20%, after publication of the Proposed Amendment to Constitution No. 6/2019, for additions or exclusions from March 
1, 2020. 
 
The present value of the tax credits, considering the realization expectation for the deferred tax assets and liabilities, is as 
follows: 
 

Description

Tax credits on 

temporary 

differences

Loss and 

negative basis

2021 (10,342)             409                   

2022 30,255               -                    

2023 5,953                

2024 564                   

2025 1,128                

Total 27,966             

Present value 20,038             

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 

The tax credits of Banco BOCOM BBM were accounted for in the financial statements using the rates applicable to the period 
they are expected to be realized, and they are based on the future results projections and on a technical study prepared in 

accordance with CMN Resolution No. 3,039/2002, amended by CMN Resolution No. 4,441/2015.  
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24. Income Tax and Social Contribution (Continued) 

 
The conciliation of the expense calculated using the tax rates and the expense of income tax and social contribution accounted 
for in the Bank is as follows: 
 

 

 
 
a) The president Jair Bolsonaro approved the Law No. 14,183, of 2021, arising from the Provisional Measure (MP) No. 
1,034/2021, effective as from July /2021, amending the Law No. 7,689/1988, in order to increase the Social Contribution on 
Net Income (CSLL) rate due by financial institutions. The impact for Banco BOCOM BBM was the increase of the CSLL rate from 
20% to 25%, between 7/1/2021 and 12/31/2021, as from 1/1/2022, the rate will be of 20%, according to the amendment 
proposed by the MP No. 1,034/2021, article 3, item III of the Law No. 7,689/1988. BOCOM BBM CCVM had the CSLL rate 
increased from 15% to 20%, between 7/1/2021 and 12/31/2021, and as from 1/1/2022, the rate will be of 15%, according to 
amendments proposed by MP No. 1,034/2021, article 3, item I, of the Law No. 7,689/1988. 
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25. Provisions and Liabilities for Legal Obligation 
 

The Bank and the Prudential Conglomerate are a party to lawsuits and administrative proceedings arising from the normal 
course of operations, involving tax, labor and civil matters among others. 
 

 
a) Breakdown of provisions 

 
Based on information from its legal counsels and on an analysis of the pending legal and civil proceedings and labor suits, 
considering previous experience related to the claimed amounts, management recorded a provision in an amount considered 
sufficient to cover the estimated losses expected in connection with ongoing litigation, as follows: 

 

 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Labor 11,787           12,154           

Civil -                633                

Total - Provisions for contingencies 11,787         12,787         

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 
 
These provisions are recorded as “Other liabilities - sundry” under Long-term liabilities. During the year ended December 31, 
2021, R$ 283 thousand was provided for contingencies in the Prudential Conglomerate. 

 
b) Liabilities for legal obligations 

 
Based on the preliminary injunction obtained, Banco BOCOM BBM and BOCOM BBM Corretora de Câmbio e Valores Mobiliários 
SA ensured the suspension of the requirement for PIS/Pasep and COFINS tax credits that are determined, with the incidence of 
Service Tax (ISS) in their calculation bases, as well as their respective bookkeeping for timely and future compensation, if 
applicable, with the respective ISS deductibility from the calculation bases of the mentioned contributions. Based on that 
preliminary injunction, Banco BOCOM BBM and BOCOM BBM Corretora de Valores Mobiliários SA started to collect, in November 
2018, PIS/Pasep and COFINS disregarding the municipal tax in their respective calculation bases, having constituted a liability 
for the remaining balance up to December 2021, recorded as “Other Sundry Liabilities” in Long-Term Liabilities, as follows: 

 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

PIS and COFINS 675 414

Total - Liabilities for legal obligations 675              414              

Prudential Conglomerate

 
 

 
 

c) Others 
 
On December 5, 2016, the Brazilian Administrative Council for Economic Defense (CADE) filed an administrative proceeding 
against Banco BOCOM BBM S.A. investigating alleged anticompetitive practices in relation to the onshore foreign exchange 
market between 2008 and 2012.  The Bank, together with its legal advisors, has already presented its administrative defense, 
still pending judgment. 
 
In November 2019, Banco BOCOM BBM SA received assessments from the Federal Revenue of Brazil with the purpose of: (i) 
Social security contributions allegedly due on PLR (Profit Sharing or Results) in the amount of R$ 5.6 million and (ii) social 
security contributions allegedly due on food in the amount of R$ 1.2 million, both correspond to payments made in 2015. The 
Bank discusses the assessments at the administrative level. In the opinion of our legal advisors, the chances of loss in these 
cases are possible. 
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26.    Allowance for Financial Guarantees 

 
The allowance for doubtful accounts related to financial guarantees is based on the analysis of operations according to the type 
of obligation provided, past experience, future expectations and management's risk assessment policy.  They are reviewed 
periodically, as established by CMN Resolution No. 4,512/2016. 
 

12/31/2021 12/31/2020

Guarantee

Surety or guarantee in lawsuits and administrative proceedings 369,085         364,728         

Linked to bids, auctions, service render or construction 267,340         307,213         

Other sureties 189,931         231,015         

Linked to international trade 28,829           9,205             

Total 855,185       912,161       

Changes in allowance for financial guarantees

Opening balance 14,740 1,088

Exchange variation -                117                

Constitution / (Reversal) (4,041)            13,535           

Closing balance 10,699 14,740

Prudential Conglomerate

 

 
 
 

27.    Other Information 

 
(a) Compensatory and settlement of obligations arrangement  

 

Banco BOCOM BBM has a compensatory and settlement of obligations arrangement within the scope of the National 
Financial System, according to CMN Resolution No. 3,263/05, resulting in more guarantee to settle its debits with financial 
institutions with which it has this kind of arrangement.  On December 31, 2021, the total assets mitigated by 
compensatory arrangement was of R$ 1,928,401 thousand (December 31, 2020 - R$ 203,053 thousand). 

   
(b) Deferred income 

 
Result for future years refers mainly to the earnings of guarantees granted, and its decrease in the period ended 
December 31, 2021 is aligned with the variation of the guarantees.  

 

(c) Marketable securities portfolio 
 

At the end of the year, based on Resolution 3,181 of the Central Bank of Brazil, considering the trend of positive effect 
on the nominal rates and liquidity of the Eurobonds offered by the national treasury and that for the budget and business 
plan of the coming years, it is important to have predictability and avoid revenue reductions, the Bank's Executive 
Committee unanimously approved to continue the process of stretching the portfolio of nominal securities held to maturity 
selling R$ 162,184 thousand in bonds maturing in 2025 and 2027 and buying R$ 163,967 thousand maturing in 2030 
and 2031, which generated an effect on the result of R$ 5,068 thousand. 

 
At the end of the year, Banco BOCOM BBM had R$ 1,225,378 thousand in marketable securities classified as “held to 
maturity”, according to Circular Letter No. 3.068 /01 of Central Bank of Brazil. Banco BOCOM BBM has financial capacity 
and intention to hold them to maturity. 

 

(d) Energy trading 
 

In order to diversify the business lines that have synergy with the group’s performance in the corporate credit segment 
and to increase the range of services available to meet the specific needs of customers, Banco BOCOM BBM plans to 
operate in the energy trading market, purchasing and selling electric power. The process of obtaining the necessary 
regulatory authorizations was concluded. The activities are expected to begin during 2022.  
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27.    Other Information (Continued) 
 

(e) Impacts of Covid-19 
 

 
The year of 2021 was marked by the strong recovery of the global economy, as several social isolation measures could be 
relaxed as vaccination advanced in the main developed economies. Most countries in the Northern Hemisphere ended the 
year with more than 75% of their population immunized with two doses of the vaccine. In response to the recovery in 
activity, several economies reduced fiscal and monetary stimulus that took place during the pandemic, especially because 
of concerns about the sustainability of spending and inflation. In Brazil, the year ended with 67% of the population 
immunized (two doses), and growth driven mainly by the global recovery and the increase in commodity prices. Record 
collections, the end of extraordinary expenses resulting from the pandemic and the growth of nominal GDP brought relief 

to the fiscal scenario and to the debt/GDP. For 2021, growth should reach just over 4%, but prospects are not very 
favorable for 2022. The labor market and the service sector continue to recover, but a restrictive monetary policy, 
combined with high household indebtedness, poses challenges for growth. Presidential elections in Brazil and less favorable 
international financial conditions add even more uncertainty to the scenario. The reform agenda – such as the tax and 
administrative ones – continues to be crucial for a more robust growth trajectory and for the fiscal sustainability of the 
Brazilian economy in the coming years. 
 
Throughout the year, the mass vaccination and immunization of our employees allowed many to partially return to face-
to-face work, and the hybrid system combined flexibility with the advantages of interactions in the work environment. 
Regular testing and the control protocols established by the bank were essential to prevent contamination by COVID-19 
among our employees, and this year's experience and learning contribute to the return to normality of work in 2022.  
 
Banco BOCOM BBM S.A., together with its employees, donated more than R$150 thousand in projects aimed at mitigating 
the effects of the pandemic on low-income families, many of which are located in regions surrounding the Bank. 
 
 

28.    Events After the Reporting Period 
 

(a) Corporate Change 

 
In 2021, Banco BOCOM BBM announced the beginning of the process of transferring 20% of its shares to Bank of 
Communications, current holder of the remaining 80%. This will result in the exit of individuals that controlled the share 
capital of Banco BOCOM BBM, it is about a continuity of the shareholders’s agreement entered into in 2016 between the 
former owners and the Bank of Communications (when the acquisition of the initial 80% occurred). The consumption of 
the operations is subject to the approval from the Brazilian and Chinese regulation authorites, with probable conclusion 
in about a year. 

 

(b) Issuance of Subordinated Private Financial Bills 

 
In February 2022, Banco BOCOM BBM issued 270 million in 10-year Subordinated Private Financial Bills, with a CDI 
rate plus 2.6% for institutional investors. According to BCB Resolution n° 122 the amount issued is eligible to be 
included in Reference Equity Level II. 
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